Request for Applications (RFA) Number 14-10184: 

Domestic Violence and Teen Dating Violence Primary Prevention Projects
Teleconference Script
May 16, 2014

Welcome:

Welcome to the California Department of Public Health, Safe and Active Communities Branch, Violence Prevention Unit teleconference for Request for Applications (RFA) Number 14-10184: Domestic Violence and Teen Dating Violence Primary Prevention Projects.  I am Nancy Bagnato, Coordinator of this project, and along with me is Mina White, Epidemiologist for the Violence Prevention Unit, and Pam Shipley, Chief of the Administrative Unit.
We will not do a roll call in order to preserve the anonymity of participants who do not wish to be identified. However, if you wish to identify yourself and your contact information for others on the call, you may do so voluntarily at the conclusion of this call.

General Announcements:

We will be using two acronyms today:  RFA, which stands for Request for Applications; and VPU, a reference to the Department of Public Health, Safe and Active Communities Branch, Violence Prevention Unit, where this project will be administered.

This teleconference includes all questions submitted through Thursday, May 15th.  A transcript of today’s pre-proposal teleconference will be posted on the CDPH website as indicated in the RFA. The transcript will not be a verbatim record of these proceedings since it may contain additional or corrected information.   

Format of the Teleconference:

First we will review some important information about this RFA. Next we will answer all questions received in advance, and then entertain additional questions. Some questions may need additional research in order to give comprehensive answers. Some of the questions may require additional discussion among staff, so we may need to put you on hold for a moment while we discuss the question.  All of the answers to your questions will be included in the transcript of this teleconference.  Please hold all questions until the question and answer portion of the call.   

Important Dates: (*indicates changes in dates as of May 19, 2014)
Mandatory Letter of Intent Due: 

May 22, 2014

*Application Due Date: 


June 6, 2014
*Notice of intent to award date: 
June 13, 2014
Contract start date: 



July 1, 2014

Contract end date: 



June 30, 2018

RFA Overview:
· The purpose of this RFA is to fund projects that will integrate the C2H community mobilization strategy into current DV/TDV primary prevention efforts, and develop formalized documentation and evaluation that can be shared with others working in this field.  
· Toward this end, the structure of this project is designed to establish a learning community that is informed through the provision of intensive technical assistance and training on implementation and evaluation of C2H, on core primary prevention concepts and best practices, and through the sharing of experiences and insights of project contractors.  
· Funding recipients will participate in the formal documentation and evaluation of their project, including the development of project case studies.  

· In order to qualify for this RFA submission process, applicants must meet the eligibility requirements and qualifications as stated in the RFA on Page 7.  Please read these carefully and ensure that you meet these requirements.
· In addition, in order to meet the expectations of the RFA and effectively implement the C2H strategy, it is recommended that applicant organizations possess the following:

1) Commitment from all levels of management, staff and board to:

· Exemplify a Learning Organization that will embrace being in a process that may necessitate transformation;

· Integrate youth practitioners into organization/prevention/community work; 
· Attend all required technical assistance and training activities, participate in evaluation activities, and present project results at VPU-sponsored events; and
· Support the project for up to four years, and to identify opportunities for additional funding/resources.

2) A clear rationale as to how the C2H community mobilization strategy will strengthen and/or build upon current DV/TDV primary prevention efforts;
3) Existing partnerships with diverse community-based organizations, including youth organizations, demonstrating a commitment to comprehensive, community-driven DV/TDV prevention;
4) Existing capacity and/or interest to engage youth as leaders in DV/TDV prevention;
5) Ability to leverage organizational and partner resources for primary prevention of DV/TDV;
6) A focus on asset/strength based approaches to DV/TDV prevention; and

7) Staff who possess the following competencies:

· Interest or capacity in community organizing and social change work;

· Desire to become a change agent in the community;

· Interest or capacity to be a facilitator of learning and transformation;

· Experience in facilitating youth groups and interest or capacity for youth leadership development;
· A basic understanding of youth development;
· Ability to deal with controversial and complex issues; and 
· Interest or capacity regarding gender analysis and multi-bias work.
Capacity for Partnering with Youth:
· A critical aspect of this project is to engage youth as partners in meaningful activities with other community members that contribute to the community mobilization process.   
· Therefore, it is paramount that applicants are confident in their ability to access youth for significant amounts of time throughout the term of this project.  The project will not be successful if this is not the case.

· If the applicant organization does not have a current youth program in place, a requirement of this project is to establish a formalized partnership with a youth-serving, community-based organization with access to youth ages 11-18 for a minimum of two hours per week, and the organization’s commitment to participate in program evaluation, which will include periodic surveys and key informant interviews.  Space also needs to be identified and secured for long-term use.  This can include a school, but it must be for access outside of the academic classroom to ensure adequate youth participation.
· Contractors are required to budget a minimum of $5,000 per year for youth stipends.

Implementing the Close to Home Model:
· Applicants must be committed to implementing the C2H community mobilization approach as required by the RFA.  
· Applicants do not have to have current capacity to implement C2H; Expert Trainers will provide intensive technical assistance and training to successful applicants on implementing and evaluating the promising strategy in their respective communities.  
· Contractors are required to pay for travel and lodging for a minimum of two people to attend technical assistance and training activities sponsored by VPU and should budget accordingly.  There are no registration fees for these VPU sponsored training events.  
Scope of Work:

· A Scope of Work (SOW) template has been provided as Attachment B that includes the required components of the project activities and deliverables for the four budget periods.  
· For the purposes of this RFA, use Attachment B and personalize the template SOW by including project name, staff responsible, intended audience, key stakeholders, community partners, and any other details that define the unique characteristics of your project or that further clarify the SOW.  
· Include a Staff Responsible Legend with position titles (not staff names) and abbreviations.  
· The SOW must align with any costs proposed in the project budget. This includes staff responsible positions and any subcontractors listed.

Questions and Answers:

Question 1: On page 14 of the RFA the first training session in Sacramento is 2 days, however it is 3 days on page 27 in the Scope of Work (SOW). Is the training 2 days or 3 days?
Response: The correct number is 2 days.

Question 2: Our agency has been working with youth organizations in the community to implement our current teen dating violence prevention project, so we have multiple partners.   Is it possible to partner with multiple organizations to recruit the group of youth leaders, or is it necessary to partner with just one?
Response:  Yes, it is possible to partner with multiple organizations to recruit the group of youth leaders. 

Question 3:  Is it necessary for partner organization staff to participate in trainings, or can our agency staff take the lead?

Response: Per page 13 of the RFA, all funded contractor project staff are required to attend all VPU sponsored TAT events.  It is not a requirement for partner organization staff to attend, although it is permitted and highly encouraged.

Question 4: Does a formal partnership need to include a financial allocation to the partner, or can they demonstrate commitment through other actions (i.e. sharing meeting space, supplies, advertising the project to their youth participants, etc)?

Response:  No, the formal partnership does not need to include a financial allocation to the partner.

Question 5:  Is there a template or format for the Letter of Intent (LOI)?

Response: No.

Question 6: Must the CBO be a 501 3(C)?
Response: No.  However, all applicants must prove that they are authorized by the Secretary of State to conduct business in California. 

Question 7: Is there a set rate for the youth stipend, or can it be a flat rate, e.g. $50 per month.

Response: Yes, the stipend can be a flat rate.  However, the rate must be reasonable and cannot exceed what the State would pay for a similar service.

Question 8: Would unifying T-Shirts for Team Leaders be a covered expense?
Response:  No.  Governor’s Executive Order # 2-18-2011 is still in effect and we are not allowed to use state funds for any type of incentive, marketing or promotional items.  However, funds from other sources may be used for this purpose.
Question 9: Do we have to have the same 10 youth participants as the core group of the YLT (Youth Leader Team) for all 4 years?  
Response: No.  However, maintaining as many core youth leadership team members as possible over the course of the project will increase the potential for achievement of objectives.

Question 10: Does the 2014 YLT start their hours of participation sometime in August or September AFTER the 3-day orientation meeting? 
Response: Yes.  The intent of the 2-3 day orientation is to prepare youth leaders to participate in the project, to learn of project objectives, and to gain fundamental knowledge of best practices for DV/TDV primary prevention.  They will also receive ongoing education and training throughout the course of the project.


Question 11: Who facilitates the initial three day orientation to participating youth? How many hours a day will the youth be at the training? Where does the training take place? 

Response: Staff from funded agencies will receive resources and training to prepare for this youth leader orientation at the initial 2-day C2H orientation provided by CDPH.  Project staff are then responsible for providing the orientation, as stated in the RFA SOW.  As stated in the RFA, page 15, the 2-3 days can be split into individual days over 2-3 weeks to accommodate youth schedules.
Question 12: Do the participants of the YLT have to participate during the summer months when they are out of school or does their participation end when school gets out for the summer? 
Response: Youth are not required to participate during the summer months.  However, having some type of activities over the summer will increase the potential for maintaining youth engagement and achievement of project objectives.

Question 13: One of the requirements is for the YLT to attend occasional one day community events. Where do those community events take place and who chooses the community events that the YLT is expected to attend? 

Response:  As part of the community mobilization process, funded agencies and the YLT will facilitate community meetings, events, and/or activities to engage the community in the process.  These events will be designed by agency staff and the YLT.

Question 14: Can you disclose the number of applications you typically receive for this RFA? 
Response:  This is a new RFA so there is no way to anticipate a response rate. 

Question 15: Under the “Application Components and Scoring” section, it asks for a “Letter of Commitment from the Executive Director and Board Chair.”  In our circumstance, as a California State University, are there other officials that would qualify to submit this letter?  For example, our Director of Research and Sponsored Projects or our Provost?
Response:  Yes, if the person identified can demonstrate the requirements as stated in the RFA, page 21, 3. Letters of Commitment and Support.  Please also review the Qualification Requirements for Applicants on Page 7 of the RFA.
Question 16:  Our program already has a timeline, and while some/much of the SOW activities and objectives align with our program, the timing of activities may be different.  How might our timeline work with the SOW timeline?  Must it be aligned or is there flexibility?

Response:  There is some flexibility with the timeline if the objectives are met in a timely and effective manner.  However, although the intent of this project is to build on current primary prevention efforts, it should not be driven by them.

Question 17: Must we have had 5 years with our current primary prevention program or could we also include other primary prevention programs in that 5 years?

Response:  Per the RFA page 7, Applicants must demonstrate and provide evidence of an organizational commitment, evidenced by the organization’s mission statement, to DV primary prevention, with a minimum of five (5) years providing DV primary prevention programs in the community.  The experience can be cumulative through different projects.
Question 18: Can the C2H integrated activities work to mobilize mostly teens, or must it eventually also focus on adults and pre-teens?

Response: Per the RFA, Page 15, D. Close to Home: Funded projects will be implementing the C2H community mobilization strategy, which is defined as a community driven process that engages youth, adults and organizational leaders to develop and implement local prevention strategies.

Purpose/Intended Outcomes:  The C2H community mobilization process will be adapted to the context of the selected programs and communities to:

a. Build a strong, active network of community members and organizations committed to fostering community-wide responsibility for DV/TDV;

b. Develop local community leadership to identify, develop and implement local prevention projects; and

c. Transform environmental factors and social norms to prevent initial perpetration of DV/TDV.

Question 19: Why is there a short time frame for responding to the RFA? 

Response:  The response time was deemed sufficient as applicants do not need to develop a full application since they will be implementing a model project with the SOW provided.
Question 20: What are the funding sources?

Response:  Per the RFA, this project is funded through the Domestic Violence Training and Education Fund, with additional funding from Blue Shield of California Foundation.

Question 21: How recent should the assessment be, and could you give examples of what this might look like?

Response:  Any assessments used to support the rationale for current or future project activities should be recent enough to be relevant to the current state of the community, which in most cases would be within three years.  Community assessments could include: needs assessments; community mapping; strategic planning documents; task force recommendations; or other documents that describe the current strengths and needs of the community that would inform DV/TDV prevention efforts in the community.  See page 19 of the RFA for additional examples.
Question 22: Do the letters of support need to be original signatures or can they be a copy?  

Response:  Original signatures are preferred but copies are acceptable.
Question 23:  Does the Men of Strength program qualify as a domestic violence or teen dating violence primary prevention program?

Response:  The Men of Strength program can be used in different types of prevention programs.  The burden is on the applicant to demonstrate how their past or current efforts are domestic violence and/or teen dating violence primary prevention.

Question 24:  A previous question about youth stipends included the response that the stipend can be a flat rate, but that the rate must be reasonable and cannot exceed what the State would pay for a similar service.  If we pay our youth minimum wage salaries, is this okay?

Response:  Yes, this is okay as it is consistent with what the state would pay for student assistants.
Question 25:  We reviewed the Close to Home website and could not find information on the model.

Response: Please refer to RFA page 16, 4. Basic Program Components, which describes the four parts of the model.  The SOW also includes key components of the model and related activities.  A program description is also attached to this script.
Question 26:  Regarding the letter of support from a coalition or task, would our youth commission qualify?

Response: The burden is on the applicant to demonstrate how this commission meets the requirement.

Question 27:  Will we be part of the case study and how do we participate.  
Response:  Per Page 13 of the RFA, contractors will be provided with questions and will be interviewed by VPU for the development of case study documents.
Question 28: Can food be purchased with this funding?

Response:  No.  Food cannot be purchased with these funds. 

Question 29: Who will provide the technical assistance? 
Response:  Per Page 4 of the RFA, organizations receiving funding under this RFA will participate in varied and intensive technical assistance and training activities with state and national experts on DV/TDV primary prevention including: strategy-specific trainings; webinars; coaching calls; and statewide convenings.  

Question 30: Why can’t prior contractors be eligible for this funding?

Response: The intent of this RFA is to build capacity of other organizations who have not had this opportunity through previous CDPH funding and expand the capacity of the field in California.
Question 31: Can prior contractors be subcontractors for this?

Response:  There is nothing in the RFA that states prior contractors cannot be subcontractors so it would be allowed.  However, the intent of this funding is to build the capacity of organizations not previously funded to learn and implement this model.  Having outside subcontractors as part of implementation would diminish the opportunity to build organizational competencies.
Question 32:  Are there standardized evaluations for these activities or will we be developing our own?  
Response:  Per page 13 of the RFA, after the initial project orientation, all contractors will develop an evaluation plan in consultation with VPU.  Contractors will be provided with standardized tools and methods for certain aspects of the evaluation, and will participate in an empowerment evaluation process with VPU staff on other areas such as evaluating community indicators of change and refining a project logic model (see C2H Logic Model).  

Question 33: Can the SOW be expanded to meet the need of the community?

Response: Yes.

Question 34:  Is there a branding requirement for using the C2H model?

Response:  Funded contractors will receive information related to C2H documentation requirements.

Question 35: Regarding timelines, and our current DV prevention program, should implementation take place after certain trainings?

Response: Yes.  Staff from funded organizations will participate in an orientation webinar, and then an intensive 2-day orientation prior to implementing the project, tentatively scheduled for the end of August in Sacramento.  Project staff will then provide a 2-3 day orientation for youth leaders prior to their involvement in project activities.  Although the intent of this project is to build on current DV primary prevention efforts, it should not be driven by them.

Question 36:  Is meeting with youth on a monthly basis enough?

Response:  Per page 15 of the RFA, a requirement of this project is to establish a formalized partnership with a youth-serving, community-based organization with access to youth ages 11-18 for a minimum of two hours per week.  This can be adapted somewhat to align with project activities, but the model calls for frequent meetings in order to implement ongoing project activities.  Previously funded projects agreed that this time commitment was critical to effective implementation of this model.
Question 37: Youth are very creative.  Is there opportunity to include items in the SOW that are created by the youth and fit in the SOW criteria?

Response: Yes.  It is anticipated that creative and innovative activities that are consistent with the C2H model will enhance required SOW activities. 

Closing Remarks:

At the conclusion of this teleconference, no other questions may be submitted.  A transcript of today’s teleconference with any additional clarifications on the questions received today will be posted by May 20th on the CDPH website as listed in the RFA.

This concludes the teleconference for RFA # 14-10184:  Domestic Violence and Teen Dating Violence Primary Prevention Projects.
CDPH/SACB
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